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Financial Highlights

In millions, except per share data

Years ended December 31 2000

Net sales $5,673.7
Net income $ 4784
Basic eamnings per share

Continuing operations : 2.04
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (.03

2.01

Diluted earnings per share

Continuing operations 1./9 2.02
Cumulative effect of accounting changes — [.03)

$ 179 $ 199

2001 net income includes $68.3 million, or $0.28 per diluted share, for special and nonrecurring charges related to workforce
reduction programs and facility rationalizations. Additional information concemning significant unusual ifems in 2001 and 2000 can
be found on page 22.

Financial Achievements

Earnings Per Diluted Share Cash Flow from
MNet Sales from Continving Operations Continving Operations
$ In billions in dollars $ In millions

2.50 L As Reported
O Adjusted for Unusual ltems

97 98 99 Q0 0l . 99T 00r o Q7 98 99 00 Ol

* As reported includes VAT berefir of $.06
1 As reported includes special charge of ($.46)
tinformation concerning significant unusual isems in 1999,

2000 and 2001 can be found on page 22
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SHAREHOLDERS

We are very pleased to report that Avon delivered
standout performance in 2001, on fop of a very
strong 2000, demonsirating again the strength and
competitive advantage of our global direct selling
operations, even in times of significant external chal-
lenges. And we thank you—Avon's owners—for your
continued support as we fransform the company for
even greater success in the future.

We're very proud that throughout the two-year
tenure of this management team, Aven has consis-
tently achieved its sales and earnings fargets. Our
associates and Representatives responded fo the
adversity of 2001 with both discipline and passion,
and our results reinforce our confidence in Avon's
future. We're also pleased that we achieved our
growth targets while making substantial incremental
investments in our longerterm strategies o extend
the Avon brand to new customers.

The U.S., our largest market, countered

a year of weak consumer confidence to deliver ifs

Andrea Jung, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
Susan Kropf, President and Chief Operating Officer

strongest fullyear sales growth since 1996 and ifs
strongest fourth-quarter growth in over a decade.
Latin America confronted serious currency and
economic difficulties in several major markets, but
responded with double-digit growth in local cur-
rency sales and operating profit. Europe confinued
its outstanding growith track; and Asia, despite
ongoing economic issues, posted impressive local

currency results.

The Power of Performance. Overall, Avon’s sales
rose 5% to a record $5.95 billion. Excluding

the impact of foreign currency exchange, sales
increased a very sfrong 10%, driven by 9% unit
growth and a 10% rise in active Representatives.
Eamings per share, excluding unusual items, rose
11% 10 $2.09, in line with our longerm target of
double-digit annual ecrnings growth. Unusual items
in 2001, which reduced reported earnings by $.30

per share to $1.79, included a restructuring charge
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Avon's sales in local currencies
have grown at a compound
annual rate of 10%, driven by
solid gains in units and

active Representatives.

of $.28 per share to implement business transforma-
fion initiatives designed to streamline Avon's world-
wide operations and improve margins. Additional
information conceming significant unusual items in
2001 can be found in the Management's Discussion
and Analysis section of this report on page 22.

Avon also generated record cash flow from
operations of $755 million in 2001, an increase
of $431 million over the prior year. Your management
remains committed to using Avon's cash to enhance
shareholder returns. In 2001, the company bought
back $133 million of stock as part of our ongoing
share repurchase program, and in January 2002,
we increased the dividend for the 12" siraight year
to an annualized rate of $.80 per share.

In a very challenging stock market, Avon's
share price closed the year at $46.50, down 3%,
which was a substantially befter performance than

most of our competitors and the S&P 500, which

Sales in Constant Dollars
$ in billions
Base year = 1997

8.0

7.0 ™~

6.0

5.0

4.0

3.0

2.0

1.0

Q7 98 99 00 01

O Net Sales, Constant U.S. Dollars
[excludes currency translation)

O MNet Sales, Actual U.S. Dollars

fell 13%. And for the tworyear period under current
management, Avon's shares have had a total return

of 46%, well above the market and our peer group.

The Beauty of Direct Selling. Our core direct selling
business performed extremely well in 2001, while
most retail competitors struggled in the face of weak
consumer demand. Beauty sales rose 6%, fueled by
continuing investments in customer initiatives that
are driving category growth and gains in market
share. In 2001, we invested an incremental $40
million—on top of the $20 million increase in
2000~ for brochure upgrades, expansion of our
let's Talk advertising campaign to 26 markets
and other consumerfocused marketing activities.
The number of active Representatives in Avon’s
direct selling channel grew 10% o 3.5 million world-
wide, continuing the growth frend in recent years in

this important metric.
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Avon U.S. delivered
accelerating sales growth

throughout 2001,

despite weakening

consumer confidence.

A key driver of Representative growth is Sales
leadership, which lefs Representatives increase
their earnings by recruiting and training others. On
average, the eamings of leadership Representatives
are twotorthree times higher than the earnings of
troditional Representatives. Lleadership now is active
in 24 countries, including many of our largest
and fastestgrowing markets. In the U.S., 38% of
the sales force has been recruited by Leadership
Represeniatives. In Poland, 46% have come in
through Leadership, and in Hungary, o dramatic
76%. Ten additional markets are scheduled to
launch leadership in 2002,

Avon is also utilizing the Infernet to contem-
porize direct selling by helping Representatives
manage their business electronically. In the U.S.,
where we have built a businessto-business Internet
capability, more than 20% of our Representatives

submit their orders online, which is twice the number

2001 U.S. Sales Growth

10%

8% F

6%

4%

2%

1Q 2Q3Q4Q

of a year ago, and we are targeting significantly
more in 2002. In addition, over 20,000 U.S.
Representatives are marketing to their customers
through personalized Web sites linked to avon.com.

Globally, Avon has Internet sites in more than
20 markets. Most are consumer information sites,
out in 2001, the U.K., Brazil, Argentina, Mexico
and Hungary also piloted businessiobusiness sites
fo support Representatives and sales managers. We
expect the Infernet to play an increasingly important
role in driving down Avon's fransaction costs and
making our Representatives more productive.

We also extended the Avon brand to new
products and channels in 2001. Avon Wellness,
our new global line of health and well-being prod-
ucts, launched in 15 markets and achieved sales
of more than $150 million, nearly three times our
original forecast. In addition, beComing, a com-

pletely new line of beauty products created for
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Avon's total return
to shareholders has
substanticlly outperformed
the overall stock market

for the past two years.

women who shop af retail, launched in September
in 92 J.C. Penney depariment stores in the U.S.
Consumer response to the beComing line has been
encouraging and is providing us with valucble
lessons on how to leverage Avon’s brand equity

beyond our core channel.

The Power of Transformation. Looking 1o the future,
‘we are moving ahead in 2002 fo implement the
business transformation initiatives we outlined last
May. Your management believes that business trans-
formation will be an important catalyst for driving
Avon's future profitability.

Qur goal is to transform Avon to be a far
more efficient, streamlined and globally integrated
company. Our plans call for speeding up the pace
of new product development, streamlining our mar-
keting processes, driving endto-end supply chain

opportunities throughout the company, and delivering

2000-2001 Cumulative Total Return
Assumes $1,000 invested 12/31/99, and dividends reinvested

In dollars
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a much higher and more flexible level of service to
Representatives and consumers.

In 2002, we expect fo sfart seeing benefits
from business transformation, including freeing up
additional funds to invest in consumer markefing
initiatives. Consumerfacing invesiments are crifical
fo attracting new consumers fo the Avon brand and
continuing fo generate superior foprline growth.

At the same time, the efficiencies from business
fransformation should enable us to significantly
expand operating margins going forward. We are
targeting @ 250 basis-point improvement by year
end 2004, which will help ensure that we deliver on
our long-term target of at least 10% annual growth in
earnings per share.

With the growing strength of Avon's brand, the
power of our direct selling channel and the benefits
to be derived from business transformation, your

management believes that Avon's best days are still
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Business transformation is
infended to redesign
Avon’s business processes

and accelerate growth in leading key

performance indicators.

to come. We have the right strategies and a great
management feam in place. We also are fortunate
fo have the expertise and guidance of our out-
standing Board of Directors. In 2001, we elected

one new Director-W. Don Cornwell of Granite

Broadcasting Corporation, who brings strong operat-

ing and financial background, plus experience in
mass media.

In closing, we would like to thank our Avon
associctes and Representatives all over the world.
We count on their skills, experience and com-
mitment to take Avon forward to even greater
success and growth. And, we are very proud that
their efforis—plus contributions of thousands of
people from all walks of life—have helped to raise
some $190 million globally in the fight against
the deadly disease of breast cancer, further rein-
forcing Avon's commitment o serve the needs

of women.

Business Transformation Goals
2002-2004
Annualized Targets
10%+
12%+

Sales Growth [Local Currencyl

Beauty Sales Growth (local Currency)

Consumer Spending as % of Sales 9%
2.5 pis.
$700m

down 8-10

Operating Margin Improvement

Cash Flow frem Operations

Inventory Days

locking ahead, we are excited about Avon's
prospects for the future. We have been entrusted
with a great heritage and a thriving business, and
we pledge to do everything we can to help your

company realize its full potential.

Sincerely,

WW

Andrea Jung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

fo by

Susan Kropf
President and Chief Operating Officer
March 1, 2002
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Dower

OF THE

orand

Only Avon
reaches so many women
in SO many ways
in so many parts of the world—

this is the power
of the Avon brand.

You know it when you feel it. POWER. It springs
from many sources, and finds expression in terms
like confidence, selfassurance and enterprise. But
at the Company for Women, it derives from one
source—the Avon brand.

Our research shows that Avon enjoys near-
universal name recognition, and conveys to women
a sense of quality, service, and a wide range of
affordable beauty products. Avon, in fact, was one
of the only beauty companies listed in the Business
Week 2001 compilation of the 100 top global brands,
a ranking that highlights the infernational reach of our
brand...and undeniable competitive power.

Avon. No matter where it's spoken, Avon's
name elicits the same popular image of leading-edge
beauty and trusting relationships. And behind those
four instantly recognizable letters stand three com-
pelling strengths: the Power of Beauty, the Power of
Relationships and the Power of Caring.

When women talk about Avon, they talk about

breakihrough beauty products and great value. Ii's a

~ conversation that crosses national borders, sharpened

by the newest edition of our let’s Talk advertising cam-
paign, now appearing in 26 markets.

Whoat's the conversation about? Ii's about Avon
being a major beauty company that increased sales
significantly in 2001. If's also about Avon’s top eight
global brands growing 11% {compounded annually)
since 1997/

For example, sales of Anew, our anfiaging skin
care line, grew by nearly 16% in 2001, powered
by breakthrough products like Anew Refroactive and
Pure O2. Retroactive improves skin tone and texture
at the cellular level and sells in 47 markets. Pure O2,

which launched in 10 markets in late 2001, increases
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oxygen delivery to skin cells and erases signs of stress
and fatigue. Overall, global sales of the Anew line

now exceed $300 million.

The conversation also covers Avon Color, our
$700 million flagship cosmetics line, with colorful
innovations like Avon Beyond Color lluminating
Radiance Vitamin C Foundation with enhanced skin
protection, and Avon Beyond Color Nutralush
Plumping lipstick with SPF 12 with dazzling, longer-

s

> iurzog
wr tinng
W camplox

Sales of Top Eight
Beauty Brands
$ in billions

2.0

97 98 99 00 O1

let's Talk advertising and
redesigned sales brochures
are sirengthening Avon's
beauty image and aftracting

new customers [below).

Avon's eight
largest global beauty

brands have grown

11%, compounded

annually, since 1997.




lasting colors. And we're talking about Litile Black
Dress, our most successful global fragrance infroduc-
tion ever, with launch sales of $42 million.

The talk is about hair care, too. Our global

Advance Techniques Hair Care line grew 33% last

year with innovative formulas that strengthen, repair

and protect hair. The line foday is @ $97 million
global hair care franchise.

The conversation includes new product lines
and channels as well. Avon Wellness launched in

15 markets in 2001 and brings women inner and

beComing lounched in attractive

"stores-ina-store” in the U.S. to

reach new customers who buy

beauty at retail (right.

outer beauty with a holisfic line of vitamins, nutrifional
supplements, and health and well-being offerings.
Our beComing brand launched in September
2001 in the U.S. and offers women who shop at
retail an integrated array of beauty and personal
care products best suited to their lifestyles.
So let's talk...about Avon and the Power

of Beauty.
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THE

cower

relationships

Avon is
about relationships—
onefo-one
woman-to-woman—

warm, caring and personal.

This year, 3.5 million Avon Representatives in

143 countries will go doorto-door, officeto-office,
and computerfo-computer fo bring Avon directly

to their customers. These warm, personal bonds
explain why so many women everywhere trust
Avon—a powerful competitive advantage in today’s

crowded and often impersonal beauty marketplace.

To strengthen that advantage, we're contempo-
rizing our direct selling channel as a 21 century
earnings opportunity for women. For example, Avon
Representatives in 24 markets participate in Sales
leadership, where they can earn substantially
more by recruiting and fraining new Representatives.
In the U.S., over 15,000 Representatives have
received world-class fraining to become "Avon
Beauty Advisors” with enhanced product knowledge
and professional beauty consulting skills. In some
markets, entrepreneurial Representatives can manage
Avon beauty boutiques and other retail-oriented
opportunities that increase their income, build their
careers, and bring Avon to new customers in ways
that complement direct selling.

And, we're connecting high-fouch direct selling
with the high-tech Infernet. Businessto-business (B2B)
sifes in major markets are encbling Representatives
to manage more of their business online. In the U.S.,
for example, more than 20% of our Representatives
are submitting orders online, more than twice the
number of a year ago.

Earnings opportunities and friendly, convenient

service—that's Avon and the Power of Relationships.
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| love Avon because it is a
winning brand and that makes
me a winner too. | really care
about Avon because it has
always been concemed about
women's needs and issues.
That is what aftracted me fo
becoming a Representative.”
— Maria Eunice Vieira
Guimardes Franco,
Representative, age 48,

S&o Paolo, Brazil

"Avon has given me so many
opporlunities. | started as a
Representative; | then became
a Beauty Advisor and o
leadership Representative.
| feel I'm growing afl the fime.
[ have a lot of flexibility so |
can work and also be with
my family. | love talking with
the customers, giving them
makeovers and building
relationships with them.”

— Luz Stella Bongiovi, below
right, Represeniative, age 40,
Brooklyn, New York, U.S.

"1 love the quality of Avon's
products. | love the way
they give me more confi-
dence in my appearance
and how | present myself
professionally. Avon is my
favorite beauty company.”
— Ester Gomez, below
left, Customer, age 33,
Brooklyn, New York, U.S. .

Number of Active
Representatives Worldwide
In millions

o7 98 99 00" 0T

* Revised methodology for caleulating
active Representaives

The number of

Avon Representatives
increased 10% last
year fo an all-time
high of 3.5 million,
continuing the growth |

trend in recent years

in this important metrid

leadership Representatives
increase their eamings
by recruiting and training

new Representatives {below).




"Being an Avon Represen-
iative has opened doors
for me. I've made many
new friends and gained
confidence, not to mention
the earnings, which have
enabled me to treat myself
and my family to those litile
extras | might not otherwise
be able to afford.”

— Jeanette Campkin,
below right, Representative,

age 42, london, England

" Avon makes shopping easy
and enjoyable for me. | like
being able to buy from a
company that | trust, and
with Avon | know that the
products will be good. Avon
also infreduced me to my
Representative, Jeanstte;
she’s more like a friend than
a salesperson and | value
her advice.”

— Debbie Sharp, below
left, Customer, age 29,

london, England

“ Avon is a company full of car
ing people who moke a sensar
tional team. I've learned 1o
love and care about the peo-
ple in my job. My customers
are my special passion! Every

day, | have a new opportunity

fo meet new people who usuak

ly become my friends. | always
look forward 1o bringing them
the lotest beauty products.”

— Veronica Ponce,
Representative, age 25,

Mexico City, Mexico

* Avon has given me the
courage and opportunity to
have my own business and
career, There is no other com-
pany like Avon that provides
the training 1o become a skillful
beauty consultant or a profes:
sional management executive.
Avon is like a warm family,
too, where you receive support
and care from all the other
family members.”

— Ling Aiqun, fop,

Manager, Avon Beauty
Boutique, age 29,

Conghua, China

“| love Avon's fashionable

makeup products. | love the
variety of products and colors.
Whenever you see something

new in a fashion magazine,

you can dlso find it at Avon.

Now | am one of Avon's
faithful fans.”
— Yun Su, botiom, Customer,

age 24, Guangzhou, China

"Why do | love Avong
Because Avon is a company
that loves women, under-
slands and takes care of
women. Avon means having
a possibility of many choices.
There is always a great
variety of products in every
brochure, with many inferest-
ing offers. With Avon you
can find the right products
for different ages and differ-
ent budgets.”

— lrina Suhareva, Cusfomer,

age 27, Moscow, Russia
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THE

DOWer

caring

The power of Avon
may one day
help women
kiss goodbye to

breast cancer.

Avon's vision is o be the company that best

understands the product, service and selFfulfiliment
needs of women globally. The power of this vision
comes alive in our 116vearold heritage of caring

for women in ways that are important fo them.

In our most recent Avon Global Women's
Survey, more than 43,000 women in 33 coun-
fries told us that they are most concerned about
health issues and economic independence. As the
Company for VWomen, when women falk, we
listen—and we act.

We began addressing women’s health in 1992
through the Aven Worldwide Fund For Women's
Health. To date, the Fund has raised some $190
million—mostly for the fight against breast cancer-
through fundraising initiatives in 34 markefs. No
other company has raised so much money for
women’s health issues. What's more, we plan to
exceed our goal of $250 million by yecrend 2002.

Avon Representatives lead the way by for-
going commissions on the sale of “pink ribbon”
products and in other fundraising activities. Proceeds
help support education and awareness programs,
and purchase medical equipment in communities
where we do business. The funds also are helping to
build research laboratories and cancercare facilities
at leading medical centers, and provide support for
medical research that one day may lead to a cure

for breast cancer.
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In 2001, Avon launched Kiss Goodbye
fo Breast Cancer, our first globally coordinated
causerelated program on women'’s health. Avon
Representatives and associates in a dozen mar-

kefs came fogether on “days of commitment” to

sell Kiss Goodbye to Breast Cancer lipsticks

and to hand out informative literature to consumers
in homes, stores, malls and offices. We plan fo
expand Kiss Goodbye to Breast Cancer to more
than 40 markets in 2002,

Avon also empowers women’s economic

independence on a global scale, beginning with

the earnings opportunity we provide to our 3.5
million independent Representatives. We provide
funding for organizations and programs that assist
women and girls with economic opportunity, voca-
fional training, education scholarships, and serv-
ices that enhance their physical and emotional
wellbeing.

For example, we've been working since 1999
with Dress For Success Worldwide, an international
organization in 58 cifies that helps low-income
women by providing business atfire and other sup-
port as they seek employment. Avon has helped

fund the infernational expansion of Dress For Success

the Ginfony lawar Teodor
Alonse Eduu

partrarship win

of Education o 1scognize ool
sk’md‘”g achisvement of female
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Avon Breast Cancer Crusade
Gifts, 1993-2001 (U.S.)
Total = $147.8 million

r52.4

0 Caoncer Centers/Research

0 Educaiion and Screening Programs
for Underserved Women

O Support Programs for Women
With Breast Cancer

L Advocacy Training and
Medical Education

Crusade funds
in the U.S. support

many inifiatives

in the fight against

breast cancer.

Worldwide, and also has donated jewelry, hosiery
and cosmetics in the U.S. and the U.K.

Avon also cares when fragedy strikes, as it did
on September 11. Our 550,000 U.S. Representatives
raised nearly $7 million in ten days by selling the
special Avon Heart of America pin. Net proceeds
support financial aid for educational institutions, ofter-
school programs and other programs that aid chil-
dren affected by the tragedy.

As the Company for Women, Avon's response
fo women'’s concerns and aspirations demonstrates
the caring spirit that is part of the global power of

the Avon brand.

ottt s e o

A mammogram machine pur-
chosed with funds raised by
Avon in Hungary {leffl.

Funds raised by Avon initiatives
are helping to build research
laboratories and cancercare
facilities ot leading U.S. medical

centers [abovel,




REVIEW

cperafions

Change

from Operating

North America $ Millions 2000 Margin®
$2,273.2 + 6%

Net Sales

Business Unit Operating Profit™ $  380.2

+ 3% 16.5%

Europe

Net Sales $1,0006 +14%

Business Unit Operating Profitt  §  167.0 +29% 16.5%
Pacific

Net Sales $ 7714 - 4%

Business Unit Operating Profit*  $ 112.6 - 4% 14.4%
Latin America

Net Sales $1,8996 + 3%

Business Unit Operating Profit:  $ 4275 + 3% 22.5%

* Based on total revenve.

T Operating profit for North America excludes o Contract seflement
gain, nei of related expenses, of $25.9 million pretax in 2001,

1 Business unit operating profit excludes global expenses and unusual
items. Additional information covering global expenses and unusual
itemns can be found in the Management's Discussion and Analysis

secfion of this report.

North America
Canada

Puerto Rico
United States

Europe
Austria
Bulgaria
Croatia
Czech Republic
Estonia
France
Germany
Greece
Hungary
Ireland
taly
Latvia
lithuania
Moldova
Morocco
Poland

Portugal
Romania
Russia
Serbia
Slovakia
Slovenia
Spain
Turkey
Ukraine
United Kingdom
South Africa

Pacific
Australia
China

Hong Kong
India
Indonesia
Japan
Malaysia
New Zealand

Philippines

Singapore
South Korea
Toiwan

Thailand

Latin America
Argentina
Bolivia

Brazil

Chile
Dominican Republic
Ecuador

El Salvador
Guatemala
Honduras
Mexico
Nicaragua
Panama

Pery

Uruguay

Venezuela

Avon's momentum continued in 2001, despite external

challenges in some markets.

Proven Profitable Growth in North America Robust per
formance in the U.S., Avon’s largest market, drove North
America’s 2001 results. U.S. sales growth accelerated in
every quarter of the year, proving that a large developed
market can grow profitably, even in a weak economy.
Fullyear scles increased 6%, the strongest growih in five
years, driven by 6% unit growth and o 3% gain in the
number of active Representatives. Operaiing profit in the
U.S. grew chead of sales at 9% due to improved sourc:
ing, distribution, and resource allocation, as well as costs
in 2000 associated with exiting certain Avon-owned
Beauty Centers.

Avon's direct selling channel was a striking com-
petitive advantage and helped strengthen customer
relationships during the economic downturn. Avon U.S.
continued contemporizing direct selling as more women
pursued enhanced earnings opportunities and training.
leadership Representatives grew 17% 1o 210,000 and
today account for 38% of the sales force, and specially
frained Avon Beauty Advisors now number over 15,000,
Al yearend, more than 20% of Representatives were
submitting customers' orders online, with a goal of 50%
ordering online by the end of 2002.

Continued investments in U.S. customer growth
and brand building included the lefs Talk advertising
campaign, which heloed boost Avon’s infernally measured
consumer Beauty Image Index by 21 points. An upgraded
U.S. sales brochure debuted in the fourth quarter, and
along with aggressive sampling throughout the vear,
heloed Representatives reach new customers,

Leveraging Resources Across Borders in Europe The
Europe Region in 2001 generated local currency sales
and operating profit gains of 18% and 31%, respectively.
Results were driven by 19% unit growth and a 19% gain in
the number of active Representatives. Sharply higher sales
in certain markets, plus sourcing benefits and selected
reductions in import and custom duties, contributed to an

operafing margin improvement of almast 200 basis points.
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Within the region, Central and Eastern Europe,
which includes Russia, generated sales and operating
profit growth of 61% and 91%, respectively, as Avon
continued fo leverage the power of its high brand aware-
ness and direct selfling channel o reach more consumers.
Avon helds commanding leadership positions in these
markets, and the longrange outlook is to double beauty
market share.

In Western Europe, the UK. generated local cur-
rency sales growth of 7% and o 23% increase in local
currency operating profit, benefiting from installation of
more efficient shipping systems in the prior year.

Europe in 2007 also accelerated its leveraging of
assets, functions and resources as part of a fully integrated,
cross-horder operations model. In Garwolin, Poland, Avon'’s
expanded manufocturing facility is gearing up fo meet
accelerating consumer demand in Central and Eastern
Europe and Western Europe. Additionally, by managing
marketing and distribution from central locations [taly

and Germany, respectively), Western Europe is reaping fur-

ther efficiencies. Europe also launched common demand
forecasting software in 2001, and finalized plans for imple-

mentation of a fully integrated supply chain.

Asian Expansion The Pacific Region in 2001 increased
both local currency scles and operating profit by 6%, sup-
ported by 8% unit growth and an 11% gain in the number
of active Representaiives. Asia’s performance reflects con-
tinuing expansion of market coverage and penetration
throughout the region.

All major markets except Taiwan contributed to the
gains. The Philippines generated doubledigit increases in
local currency sales and operating profit. Japan delivered
8% growth in local currency operating profit despite severe
economic difficulties.

In China, scles grew 36% o nearly $100 million.
China is on track to reach $150-200 million in sales by
2003 and is solidly profitable as strategies implemented
following the 1998 government ban on direct selling

have flourished.

Since the ban, Avon has operated mainly through
a refail /wholesale distribution model, including more than
4,400 Beauty Boutiques {independently owned Avon-
designed stores that sell Aven products exclusively), and
over 1,300 Beauty Counters located in department siores.

These channels position Avon for accelerated
growth following China’s 2001 entry into the World
Trade Organization (WTO). Avon and other direct
selling companies are working with the Chinese govern-
ment to re-establish direct selling opportunities under
WIO provisions.

Growth in Latin America Despite Headwinds The Latin
America Region in 2001 increased local currency sales
by 12%, supported by 9% unit growth and o 9% gain in
the number of active Representatives. Operating profit
rose 11% in local currencies. Most markets contributed to

these gains, even against economic heodwinds/ as Avon

outperformed many competitors and gained market share

in Mexico, Brazil and Argentina.

In Argenting, local currency sales and operating
profit both declined versus last year due to the worsening
economic crisis as the year closed. Even so, Avon sfrength-
ened ifs leadership position in most beauty categories.

In Mexico, sales and operating profit rose in the
double digits, driven by a 7% increase in units and a
9% gain in the number of active Representatives. Market
share in the important skin care category improved five
perceniage poinis fo 25% as new products like Anew
Retroactive attracted new consumers. Avon Mexico also
implemented measures in 2001 fo accelerate operating
efficiencies and strengthen future profitability. For example,
70% of distribution was shifted to a new, lower-cost facility
in Celaya, a centrally located hub.

Brazil generated doubledigit growth in both local
currency sales and operating profit as active Representafives
increased 8%. Anew Retroactive expanded Avon's market
share in the anfi-aging market to almest 50%. To mest
accelerating consumer demand, Avon is breaking ground
in 2002 for a new distribution facility to be built at Bahia

in northern Brazil.

AVON 2001: FEEL THE POWER




THE

INanclo

SECTION

Net Sales-Constant vs.
Actual U.S. Dollars
$ In billions

Business Unit
Operating Profit

2001 Results by
Geographic Region

Base year = 1997 $ tn millions 95
Net Sales 27
8.0 _ 1200
7.0 M M r
’ 1000 n 28
6.0 T = H 28
) - . 29
SN 0 800
5.0 B M 29
4.0 SEREREn 60C EEREEER Business Unit Operating Profit 29
L ﬂ 30
3.0 0 [ B 30
400 %
EpEpE R (1 30
2.0
== M 200 ]
1.0
31
97 98 99 00 0l 97 98 99 00 01 31
2 Net Sales, Constant U.S. Dollors 0 North America 31
{excludes currency translation} O Latin America 39
O Net Sales, Actual U.S. Doliars DEL”DPQ
I Pacific
33
33
34
- . 34
Dividends Paid Year-End Market 35
Per Common Share Capital Expenditures Capitalization
In dollars $ In millions $ In billions 35
36
.80 —_ 225 12.0 M —_ 37
I m W N _ M
70 M L
| e w
.604_]7 RERRR —' 38
M —— —— —
— I HHHH 8.0
.50 135 H 39
40 HERRBER 6.0 RERERER 40
.30 HURREEE 9 L L
4.0
.20 NEBERRR ERRNRRE a1
SRRy s 2.0 ERNERER
10
Q7 98 99 00 Q1 Q7 98 99 00 O} Q7 98 99 00 01 42
61
62
20 AVON 2001

21

21
21

22
22
22
24

Contends

Management’s
Discussion and Analysis
Cautionary Statement
Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates
Business

Results of Operations
Consolidated

2001 Compared to 2000
North America
International

2000 Compared to 1999
North America
Infernational

Clobal Expenses
Accounting Changes
Contingencies

Liquidity and Capital
Resources

Cash Flows

Working Capital

Capital Resources

Debt and Contractual
Financial Obligations

and Commitments
Inventories

Capital Expenditures
Foreign Operations

Risk Management Strategies
and Market Rate Sensitive
Instruments

Interest Rate Risk

Foreign Currency Risk
Other Financing Activities
Credit and Market Risk
Euro

Other Information
Results of Operations
by Quarter

Market Prices Per
Share of Common
Stock by Quarter
Consolidated
Statements of income
Consolidated Balance
Sheets

Consolidated
Statements of

Cash Flows
Consolidated
Statements of Changes
in Shareholders’
(Deficit) Equity

Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements
Report of Management
and Report of
independent
Accountants
Eleven-Year Review

FEEL THE POWER




Management's Discussion and Analysis

Avon Products, Inc.

Dollars in millions, except share data

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe
Harbor” Statement Under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995
Certain statemnents in this report which are not historical
facts or information are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements
are based on management’s reasonable current assump-
tions and expectations. Such forward-looking statements
involve risks, uncertainties and other factors which
may cause the actual results, levels of activity, perform-
ance or achievement of Avon Products, Inc. (“Avon” or
the “Company”) to be materially different from any
future results, levels of activity, performance or achieve-
ment expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements, and there can be no assurance that actual
results will not differ materially from management'’s
expectations. Such factors include, among others, the
following: general economic and business conditions in
the Company's markets; Avon’s ability to implement its
business strategy; Avon's ability to successfully identify
new business opportunities; Avon’s access to financing;
the impact of substantial currency fluctuations in Avon’s
principal foreign markets; Aven’s ability to attract and
retain key executives; Avon’s ability to achieve antici-
pated cost savings and profitability targets; changes in
the industry; competition; the effect of regulatory, tax
and legal proceedings and restrictions imposed by domes-
tic and foreign governments; and other factors discussed
in Item 1 of Avon’s Form 10-K. As a result of the fore-
going and other factors, no assurance can be given as to
the future results and achievements of Avon. Neither
Avon nor any other person assumes responsibility for
the accuracy and completeness of such forward-looking
statements, nor undertakes an obligation to update them.
The following discussion of the results of opera-
tions and financial condition of Avon should be read in
conjunction with the information contained in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
These statements have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the U.s. and
require management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilicies at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ materially from those esti-
mates. On an ongoing basis, management reviews its
estimates, including those related to revenue recognition,
allowances for doubtful accounts receivable, allowances
for sales returns, provisions for inventory obsolescence,

income taxes and tax valuation reserves, loss contingen-
cies and the determination of discount and other rate
assumptions for pension, post-retirement and post-
employment benefit expenses. Changes in facts and cir-
cumstances may result in revised estimates, which are
recorded in the period they become known.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Avon believes the accounting policies below represent
its critical accounting policies due to the estimation
processes involved in each. See Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed discus-
sion on the application of these and other account-

ing policies.

Revenue recognition > Avon recognizes revenue upon
delivery, when both title and risks and rewards of owner-
ship pass to the independent Representatives. Avon uses
estimates in determining revenue and operating profit for
orders that have been shipped but not delivered as of the
end of the period. These estimates are based on daily sales
levels, delivery lead times, gross margin and variable
expense ratios. It is possible that future results of opera-
tions for any particular quarterly or annual period could
be materially affected by changes in Avon’s assumptions.

Allowances for doubtful accounts receivable > Avon
maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of its Representatives
to make required payments. If the financial condition

of Avon's Representatives were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required.

Allowances for sales returns > Avon records a provision
for estimated sales returns based on historical experience
with product returns. If the historical data Avon uses to
calculate these estimates does not properly reflect future
returns, additional allowances may be required.

Provisions for inventory obsolescence > Avon writes down
its inventory for estimated obsolescence equal to the dif-
ference between the cost of inventory and the estimated
market value based on assumptions about future sales and
disposition plans. If actual sales are less favorable than
those projected by management, additional inventory
write downs may be required.

Income taxes and valuation reserves > Avon records a
valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets to
the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.
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While Avon has considered projected future taxable
income and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing
the need for the valuation allowance, in the event Avon
were to determine that it would be able to realize its
deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net
recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset
would increase earnings in the period such determination
was made. Likewise, should Avon determine that it would
not be able to realize all or part of its net deferred tax
asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax
asset would be charged to earnings in the period such
determination was made.

Contingencies > Avon determines whether to disclose
and accrue for loss contingencies based on an assess-
ment of whether the risk of loss is remote, reasonably
possible or probable and where reasonable estimates
can be made of the amounc of potential loss, of the
materiality of the loss contingency, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”)
No. 5 “Accounting for Contingencies.” Management’s
assessment is developed in consultations with the
Company’s outside advisors and is based on an analysis
of possible outcomes under various strategies. Loss
contingency assumptions involve judgemencs that are
inherently subjective and frequently involve matters
that are in litigation, which by its nature is unpre-
dictable. Management believes that its loss contingency
assumptions are sound, but because of the subjectivity
involved and the unpredictable nacure of the subject
matter at issue, management’s asSUmptions may prove
to be incorrect, which could materially impact the
Consolidated Financial Statements in future periods.

Business

The Company is a global manufacturer and marketer of
beauty and related products. The product categories
include Beauty which consists of cosmetics, fragrance and
toiletries ("CFT”); Beauty Plus which consists of jewelry,
watches and apparel and accessories; and Beyond Beauty
which consists of home products, gift and decorative and
candles. Health and Wellness products are divided among
all three product categories based on product segmenta-
tion. Avon’s business is primarily comprised of one indus-
try segment, direct selling, which is conducted in North
America, Latin America, the Pacific and Europe. Sales are
made to the ultimarte customers principally by independ-
ent Avon Representatives. Additionally, Avon launched a
Retail business in the U.s. in the third quarter of 2001.

Results of Operations

Consolidated > Net income for 2001 was $430.0 com-
pared with $478.4 in 2000. Basic and diluted earnings
per share in 2001 were $1.82 and $1.79, respecrively,
compared with $2.01 and $1.99, respectively, for 2000.
Net income for 1999 was $302.4 and basic and dilured
earnings per share were $1.18 and $1.17, respectively.

The 2001 results included the following items:
special and non-recurring charges of $97.4 pretax ($68.3
after-tax, or $.28 per diluted share), primarily related
to workforce reduction programs and facility rationaliza-
tions {see Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements); an Asset impairment charge of $23.9 pretax
($14.5 after-tax, or $.06 per diluted share) related to the
write off of the remaining carrying value of an order man-
agement software system that had been under develop-
ment (see Notes 14 and 16 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Sratements); a charge of $6.4 pretax ($3.4 after-
tax, or $.01 per diluted share) related to the settlement
of a contested tax assessment in Argentina (see Note 14
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements); and a
Contract settlement gain, net of related expenses, of
$25.9 pretax ($15.7 after-tax, or $.06 per diluted share)
related to the cancellation of a retail agreement between
Avon and Sears Roebuck & Company (“Sears”) (see Note
15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

The 2000 results included the settlement of a fed-
eral income tax refund, which was received in January
2001, consisting of $32.5 of tax and $62.7 of interest
related to the years ended December 31, 1982, 1983,
1985 and 1986. For the year ended December 31, 2000,
Avon recognized $40.1 (8.16 per diluted share) as an
income tax benefit in the Consolidated Statements of
Income, resulting from the impact of the tax refund
offset by taxes due on interest received and other related
tax obligations.

The 1999 results included special and non-
recurring charges of $151.2 pretax (§121.9 after-tax,
or $.47 per diluted share) related to Avon’s Business
Process Redesign (“BPR”) program.

Effective January 1, 2001, Avon adopted Fas
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities,” as amended by Fas No. 138,
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” which establishes accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments and
hedging activities. In accordance with the provisions
of Fas No. 133 and Fas No. 138, Avon recorded a
charge to earnings of $0.3, net of a tax benefit of $0.2,
in the first quarter of 2001 and a charge to Shareholders’
(deficit) equity of $3.9, net of a tax benefit of §2.1,
which is included in Accumnulated other comprehensive
loss in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These charges
are reflected as a Cumulative effect of an accounting
change in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Effective January 1, 2000, Avon changed its
method of accounting for revenue recognition in accor-
dance with Scaff Accounting Bulletin (“saB”) No. 101,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (see Note
2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The
cumulative effect of the change on prior years resulted in
a charge of $6.7, net of a tax benefit of $3.5, or §.03 per
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diluted share, which is included in Net income for the
year ended December 31, 2000.

Consolidated net sales increased 5% in 2001 to
$5.95 billion from $5.67 billion in 2000. Sales in
North America increased 6% to $2.27 billion in 2001.
International sales increased 4% to $3.68 billion in
2001 due to increases in Europe and Latin America, par-
tially offset by a decline in the Pacific region. In 2000,
consolidated net sales of $5.67 billion increased 7% from
$5.29 billion in 1999. Sales in Norch America increased
5% to $2.15 billion in 2000. International sales increased
9% to $3.53 billion in 2000 due to strong growth in the
Latin American and Pacific regions and, to a lesser extent,
in the European region. Excluding the unfavorable impact
of foreign currency translation, consolidated net sales
increased 10% and 11% in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Other revenue includes shipping and handling fees
billed to Representatives and totaled $42.5, $40.9 and
$38.8 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue was
37.0% in 2001, compared with 37.1% in 2000 and
38.1% in 1999. The 2001 cost of sales included $2.5 of
non-recurring charges related to inventory write downs
associated with facility closures. The 1999 cost of sales
included $46.0 of non-recurring charges for inventory
write downs related to the closure of facilities, discontinu-
ation of certain product lines, size-of-line reductions
and a change in strategy for product dispositions.

In 2001, gross margin was slightly favorable versus
2000 primarily due to improvements in Russia resulting
from product sourcing benefits and a reduction in cus-
toms duties on certain products; the United Kingdom
driven by favorable comparisons against product supply
difficulties in 2000; the Philippines resulting from a
change in product mix to higher priced products as well
as vendor cost negotiations; and in the U.S. due to supply
chain savings. These improvements were partially offset
by a decline in gross margin in Poland mainly from favor-
able foreign exchange on inventory purchases in 2000 and
pricing investments in 2001 to gain market share, as well
as declines in gross margin in most Western European
countries, which were negatively impacted by sales pres-
sure associated with a weak economic environment.

In 2000, gross margin was favorable versus 1999 due

to improvements in all international regions, most signif-
icantly in the Pacific region, including Japan and China,
as well as the Central and Eastern Europe region, due to
lower product costs on imports from euro countries cou-
pled with a shift in mix to higher margin products, and
in Russia, due to a favorable comparison resulting from a
discount pricing policy in 1999. Gross margins remained
level with 1999 1n Brazil and the u.s. These improve-
ments were partially offset by declines in Puerto Rico,
due to inventory variarions related to the consolidation of
operations, and in Mexico and the Philippines, resulting
from higher sales of a lower margin mix of CFT products
and selective price cuts to meet competition.

Marketing, distribution and administrative
expenses of $2.93 billion in 2001 increased $128.9, or
5%, over 2000, but decreased as a percentage of total
revenue to 48.9% from 49.1% in 2000. The improve-
ment in the expense ratio was favorably impacted by
improved expense ratios in Russia, China and the Ukraine
from significant sales increases, and in the u.s. due to
BPR savings. These improvements were partially offset
by expenses associated with the U.s. Retail business and
worldwide investments in consumer-related initiatives,
such as incremental spending on advertising, sampling
and brochure enhancements.

Marketing, distribution and administrative
expenses of $2.80 billion in 2000 increased $161.4, of
6%, over 1999, but decreased as a percentage of total
revenue t0 49.1% from 49.6% in 1999. The overall
improvement in the expense ratio was due to a favorable
expense ratio in Mexico, resulting from lower market-
ing and promotional expenses associated with product
introductions, in Russia, due to strict expense controls,
and in the Philippines and China, reflecting fixed
administrative expenses on a higher sales base. Expense
ratio improvements were partially offset by higher
expenses in Argentina, reflecting increased advertising
and brochure costs, in the United Kingdom, due to
increased shipping and distribution costs from decreased
capacity of shipping lines during transition to a new sys-
tem, and in Puerto Rico, reflecting higher transitional
expenses related to the consolidation of operations.

Interest expense decreased $13.6 in 2001 to $71.1
primarily as a result of a decline in domestic interest
rates in 2001. Interest expense increased $41.5 in 2000
to $84.7 primarily due to increased domestic borrowings
related to the acceleration of Avon's share repurchase pro-
gram and higher working capital requirements.

Interest income increased $5.9 in 2001 to $14.4
primarily due to stronger cash flow levels during 2001.
Interest income decreased $2.6 in 2000 to $8.5 primarily
resulting from reduced interest rates in Brazil and Mexico
during 2000.

Orher expense, net in 2001 of $27.0 was $5.5
unfavorable to 2000 mainly due to the setclement of a
contested excise tax assessment in Argentina in 2001
(see Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements), additional legal expenses in 2001, and unfa-
vorable foreign exchange movements on the Mexican
peso, British pound and Philippine peso contracts,
partially offset by transaction gains on a U.$. dollar
intercompany loan receivable in Argentina and favorable
foreign exchange movements in 2001 on Japanese
yen contracts.

Other expense, net in 2000 was $10.8 unfavorable
to 1999 mainly due to favorable foreign exchange in 1999
resulting from gains on Brazilian forward contracts and,
to a lesser extent, a value added tax refund in China in
1999, partially offset by favorable comparisons versus
1999, primarily in Europe and the Pacific.
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The effective tax rate was 34.7% in 2001 com-
pared with 29.2% for 2000. The effective tax rate was
higher in 2001 versus 2000 due to a federal income tax
refund in 2000 (see Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements) and cthe tax benefit of the 2001 spe-
cial and non-recurring charges (see Note 13 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements), partially offset by
the favorable impacr of repatriation planning, the earn-
ings mix and tax rates of international subsidiaries.

The effective tax rate was 29.2% in 2000 compared

with 40.3% in 1999. The effective tax rate was lower in
2000 versus 1999 due to a federal income tax refund in
2000, the settlement of foreign audits, dividend planning,
utilization of net operating loss carryforwards, the mix of
earnings and tax rates of international subsidiaries, and
the impact of the 1999 special and non-recurring charges.
Below is an analysis of the key factors affecting
net sales and operating profic by reportable segment for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2001.

. Years ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
Net Operating Net  Operating Net Operating
Sales Profit Sales Profit Sales Profic
(Loss) (Loss) (Loss)
North America:
us. $2,016.7 $373.4  $1,8049  $ 3435  $1.8003  $3203
u.s. Rerail* 13.9 (25.9) 8.5 (4.5) 3.4 (2.7)
Othert 242.6 32.7 244.5 29.2 237.6 34.5
Total 2,273.2 380.2 2,147.9 368.2 2,050.3 361.1
International:
Latin America Norch} 966.3 251.6 848.8 215.2 731.7 181.6
Latin America Southit 933.3 175.9 992.0 200.3 909.0 184.9
Latin America 1,899.6 427.5 1,840.8 415.5 1,640.7 366.5
Europe 1,009.6 167.0 88s.6 129.5 878.0 126.2
Pacific 771.4 112.6 799.4 117.8 720.1 102.1
Total 3,680.6 707.1 3,525.8 662.8 3,238.8 594.8
Total from operations 5,953.8 1,087.3 5,673.7 1,031.0 5,289.1 955.9
Global expenses (1.8) (242.5) —_ (242.3) — (255.3)
Contact settlement gain, net of related expenses - 25.9 — —_ — —
Asset impairment charge — (23.9) — — — —
Special and non-recurring charges§ — (97.4) — — — (151.2)
Total $5,952.0 $749.4 $5,673.7 $ 788.7 85,289.1 $549.4

* Includes U.s. Retail and Avon Centre.
+ Includes operating information for Canada and Puerto Rico.

$ Latin America Nocth primarily includes the markets of Mexico, Venezuela and Central America. Latin America South primarily includes the markets of

Brazil, Argentina, Chile and Peru. Avon's operations in Mexico reported net sales for 2001, 2000 and 1999 of $620.7, $555.6 and $471.6, respectively.

Avon’s operations in Mexico reported operating profit for 2001, 2000 and 1999 of $154.8, $136.0 and $115.1, respectively.

The following table presents consolidated net
sales by classes of principal products, for the years ended
December 31:

2001 2000 1999

Beaury* $3,730.5 $3,533.9 $3,220.8
1,233.7 1,174.6 1,061.6

Beyond Beauty} 987.8 965.2 1,006.7

Beauty Plust

Total net sales $5,952.0 $5,673.7 $5,289.1

* Beauty includes cosmetics, fragrances, and toiletries.

1 Beauty Plus includes fashion jewelry, watches and apparel and accessories.

4 Beyond Beauty includes home products, gift and decorative and candles.
Sales from Health and Wellness products are

divided among the three categories based on product
segmentations.

- § The $97.4 is included in the Consolidated Statements of Income as a Special charge (894.9) and as inventory write downs in Cost of sales (§2.5).

To conform to the 2001 presentation, certain
reclassificarions were made to the prior periods’ segment
information.

2001 Compared to 2000

North America > Ner sales in North America grew 6%
and operating profit increased 3% in 2001. The U.S.
business, which represents almost 9o0% of the North
American segment, reported sales and operating profit
growth of 6% and 9%, respectively.

The sales increase in the U.S. resulted from a 3%
increase in the number of active Representatives due to
the successful implementation of Avon’s career strategies,
particularly Sales Leadership, as well as the strength of
Avon’s marketing plans. The 2001 sales increase was also
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driven by a 6% growth in units due to the success of
the Kiss Goodbye to Breast Cancer lipstick campaign and
inventory clearance programs, partially offset by a tem-
poraty pause in recruitment resulting from the events
of September 11th.

U.S. sales improvements resulted from the success-
ful launch of the new Health and Wellness line of beauty,
vitamin and fitness products. The Beaucy cacegory
increased 4% with double-digit percentage increases in
color cosmetics and hair care and a mid-single digit
increase in skin care. Color had its second year of double-
digir growth. The eye and lip segments led with strong
performance in both new and existing areas. Primary
drivers of growth were the focus and resources that sup-
ported the relaunch of key sub-brands: Beyond Color,
with the incroduction of Nutralush plumping lipstick, as
well as Perfect Wear, with the introduction of EverGlaze
Lip Ink. The company-wide Kiss Goodbye to Breast Cancer
event was also critical to the color category’s success in
2001. Hair care increased as a result of the strong per-
formance of the Advance Technignes brand, including the
introduction of the new color protection line. Skin care
increased due to exceptional new products from Anew
including Line Eliminator, Force Extra, and Pure 02 as well
as a significant increase in existing Anew product sales.
The personal care category was slightly down as strength
in the specialty bath segment did not compensate for the
inability to match S&in-S0-Soft’s 2000 record performance.
Fragrance sales were flat on the year, with an increase in

the fourch quarrer reflecting the largest fragrance launch
in Avon history, Little Black Dress. Sales in the Beauty
Plus category also grew in 2001 due to increases in

apparel and accessories and watches, partially offset by a
slight decline in jewelry. The growth in watches resulted
from a strategic decision to offer more concepts as well as
increased resourcing. Beyond Beauty sales grew in 2001,
driven by an increase in gifts, partially offset by declines
in toys and home entertainment. The gift line was up due
to a successful fourth quarter holiday line.

The operating profit increase in North America
was primarily attributable to sales increases in the U.S.,
partially offset by costs associated wich the Retail busi-
ness, which launched in September 2001. Operating
profit margin in North America declined ©.4 points for
2001 primarily due to investments associated with the
U.s. Retail business, partially offset by an improvement in
the U.s. The U.s. operating margin improved due to an
increase in gross margin, the realization of certain process
redesign savings and a favorable comparison to 2000
operating results which were negatively impacted by
the costs associated with exiting certain Avon-owned
Beauty Centers. Such improvements more than offset
the higher 2001 investments associated with the
launch of the Health and Wellness business and the
U.S. Internet initiative.

Avon launched the beComing brand in select
J.C. Penney stores in the U.s. in the third quarter of 2001.
The termination of a retail venture with Sears resulted
in a gain in the third quarter of 2001 but will unfavor-
ably impact subsequent periods due to the loss of antici-
pated contribution from the Sears business. The aggre-
gate impact of the termination is expected to be neutral
through 2002 after taking into account resules and the
contract settlement with Sears.

International > Incernational net sales in U.s. dollars
increased 4% and operating profit increased 7% in

2001. The sales improvement was a result of increases

in Europe and Latin America, partially offset by a decline
in the Pacific region. Excluding the effect of foreign
currency exchange, international sales increased 12%

in 2001.

In Latin America, sales increased 3% in 2001
mainly due to double-digit sales growth in Mexico and
Venezuela, partially offset by declines in Chile, Brazil
and Argentina. The sales increases in Mexico and
Venezuela were primarily driven by strong increases in
active Representatives, customers and units. The increase
in Mexico was also driven by strong performance in fra-
grance and skin care due to new product introductions.
Venezuela had double-digit percentage sales growth in
the Beauty category resulting from competitive pricing
in fragrance and personal care. In Brazil, local currency
sales grew double-digits in 2001, driven by an increase
in units, active Representatives and customers, but
U.s. dollar sales were negatively impacted by foreign
exchange. Sales in Argentina decreased in 2001 primarily
due to a weak economic and political environment. From
1991 until early 2002, Argentina maintained the peso at
a one-to-one ratio with the u.s: dollar. During the second
half of 2c01, the Argentine peso came under increased
pressure due to three consecutive years of recession and
concerns about the government’s financial policies. In
January 2002, the Argentine peso devalued against the
u.s. dollar and Avon expects inflation to increase in
Argentina as a result of the devaluation of the peso.
While the Argentine peso did not devalue until January
2002, the pressure on the peso had a negative impact
during 2001 on other currencies in the region, including
the Brazilian real and the Chilean peso. As a result,

Avon Brazil’s and Avon Chile’s U.s. dollar results were
adversely impacted. In Brazil, an effective deployment
of resources supported by productivity gains, as well as
foreign exchange contracts previously in place, partially
compensated for the weaker currency and related eco-
nomic impact. Excluding the impact of exchange, sales
in Latin America increased 12% in 2001,
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Operating profit in Latin America increased 3%
in 2001. The operating profit improvement resulted from
the sales increases discussed above, as well as operating
profit margin improvements in Venezuela and Mexico,
partially offset by operating profic margin declines in
Argentina and Brazil. Venezuela’s operating margin
improvement reflects expense control and savings from
BPR initiatives, The operating margin improvement in
Mexico resulted from successful vendor negotiations to
lower product costs, a decrease in damaged merchandise
returns as a result of moving to a new distribution center
and a reduction in local housing taxes. Argentina’s operat-
ing margin declined mainly due to sales-related declines,
as well as a new banking tax imposed in April 2001.
Brazil’s operating margin declined in 2001 due to a nega-
tive foreign exchange impact in costs and expenses, as
well as a migracion of customers to lower priced items
driven by an erosion in consumers’ purchasing power.
Brazil's margin was also impacted by higher expenses
associated with incremental investments to support new
product launches and improve order quality, which in
turn contributed to top-line local currency sales growth.

In Europe, sales increased 14% in 2001 driven by
growth in Central and Eastern Europe, primarily Poland,
Russia and the Ukraine, and, to a lesser extent, in che
United Kingdom, partially offset by sales declines in
most Western European markets. Higher sales in Central
and Eastern Europe resulted from double-digit percentage
increases in customers, active Representatives and units.
Poland’s continued strong sales growth was aided by the
successful implementation of the Sales Leadership Strategy
(launched in 2000). This strategy has resulted in increased
market penetration and, along with continued focus on
Representative retention, contributed to a significant
increase in Representatives. In Russia, higher sales resulted
from an improved local economy, coupled with an increase
in the average order resulting from a 2001 change in the
commission structure. In the United Kingdom, the sales
increase was accomplished by growth in both customers
and customer spending despite strong competition, as
well as significant gains in color cosmetics. Sales declines
in most Western European markets were primarily the
result of a weak economic climate, which negatively

impacted business in 2001. Excluding the impact of
exchange, Europe sales grew 18%.
Europe’s operating profit increased 29% in 2001

primarily due to the higher sales discussed above, as
well as operating profit margin improvements in Russia,
the United Kingdom and the Ukraine, partially offset
by margin declines in Poland, South Africa and most
Western European markets. Russia’s operating margin
improvement was due to significant sales growch (which
led to an improvement in the expense ratio), as well as

product sourcing benefits and a reduction in custom duties
on certain products. The operating margin improvement
in the United Kingdom resulted from tighter expense
management and a reduction in shipping and distribu-
tion costs as the shipping systems installed in 2000 were
completed and began to improve productivity. The oper-
ating margin improvement in the Ukraine was driven by
an improvement in the expense ratio resulting from sales
growth of 80% in 2001, and an improvement in gross
margin, which benefited from a reduction in import
duties. The operating margin decline in Poland was driven
by favorable foreign exchange on inventory purchases in
2000 and pricing investments in 2001 to gain market
share. The operating profit margin decline in South
Africa was due to a higher expense ratio, resulting from
lower sales volume. Operating margins in most Western
European markets continued to be negatively impacted
by sales pressures associated with a weak economic envi-
ronment. Overall, the operating margin in Europe in
2001 increased 1.9 points, as compared to 2000.

In 2001, U.s. dollar sales for most major markets
in the Pacific region were negatively impacted by foreign
exchange, most significantly the Philippines, Japan and
Taiwan. U.S. dollar sales in the Pacific region declined
4% in 2001, but sales increased 6% in local currency.
Despite U.s. dollar declines in the region, U.s. dollar and
local currency sales in China grew 36% in 2001, driven
by the success of consumer initiatives and the opening of
additional beauty boutiques. Despite the weakness of the
local economy, Japan's local currency sales increased 2%
in 2001. The Philippines posted strong increases in aver-
age Representatives, customers and units, resulting in
double-digit percentage local currency sales growth in
2001. U.S. dollar and local currency sales in Taiwan
declined in 2001 due to an economic slowdown, which
has negatively impacted employment rates and consumer
spending this year.

Operating profit in the Pacific region declined 4%
in 2001 resulting from the negative impact of foreign
currency translation. Excluding the impact of foreign
exchange, operating profit increased 6% in 2001 with
increases in most major markets. China’s operating mar-
gin improved significantly in 2001 due to a favorable
expense ratio resulting from higher sales. Japan’s operat-
ing margin improved, largely driven by BPR efforts,
which continue to generate significant savings across
all expense areas. Operating margin in Taiwan declined
in 2001 due to 2 higher expense ratio resulting from
lower sales. Operating margin in the Philippines
declined resulting from costs associated with an in-
crease in brochure pages, partially offset by favorable
product mix and pricing.
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2000 Compared to 1999

North America > Net sales in North America increased
5% to $2.15 billion in 2000. The U.s. business, repre-
senting almost 9o% of the North American segment,
reported sales growth of 5%. The sales increase in the U.S.

resulted primarily from a 6% increase in the number of

units sold, a 2% increase in active Representatives and a
higher than average CFT order size. Sales improvements
in the U.s. resulted from increases in CFT categories, fash-
ion jewelry and watches and accessories, partially offset
by declines in apparel and home entertainment products.
U.S. sales of CFT increased 7% ovet 1999 reflecting a
double-digit increase in skincare, primarily due to strong
launches of Botanisource and Anew Retroactive, which was
Avon’s largest CFT launch ever. Color cosmetics also
reported a double-digit increase versus 1999, reflecting
our commitment to the Avon Color brand and powerful
new product introductions, such as Nazlwear and
Glazewear. Growth in the fragrance category was driven
by strong performance in Men's brands. The personal care
category also contributed to the sales increase, with par-
ticular strength coming from the launch of Chamomile
and sales of existing S&in-So-Soft lines, which reported
the largest increases ever for this brand. Fashion jewelry
and watches increased mid-single digits versus 1999

due to strategic growth in fashion and fine jewelry seg-
ments. Higher sales in accessories were driven by a strong
performance in fashion accessories, including handbags,
totes and small leather goods. These increases were
partially offset by declines in the apparel category, due

to softness in casual wear items, and lower sales in

home entertainment products, resulting from fewer new
product introductions.

Operating profit in North America increased 2%
to $368.2 in 2000 due to the region’s increased sales, dis-
cussed above, while the operating margin declined 0.5
points. The decline in operating margin was primarily
due to an increase in the operating expense ratio in Puerto
Rico caused by higher transitional expenses related to
the consolidation of operations. Gross margin in North
America remained level in 2000 as compared to 1999.
Operating profit in the U.s. of $343.5 increased 4% ver-
sus 1999 reflecting sales growth, partially offset by a
slightly unfavorable expense ratio. The expense ratio in
the U.S. was negatively impacted by asset write downs
associated with the closure of certain Company-owned
Avon Beauty Centers. Excluding the asset write downs,
the expense ratio was favorable to 1999 resulting from
cost containment, BPR savings and lower benefit expenses
partially offset by increased spending on advertising and
e-commerce initiatives.

International > International sales increased 9% to $3.53
billion and operating profit increased 11% to $662.8 in
2000. Excluding the effect of foreign exchange, interna-
tional sales increased 14% in 2000 with double-digit
increases in all regions.

In Latin America, sales increased 129 to $1.84
billion in 2000 driven by improvements in all major mar-
kets, with Mexico, Brazil and Venezuela being the main
contributors. Excluding the impact of foreign exchange,
sales in Latin America increased 15% in 2000. Units and
active Representatives for the region rose 4% and 10%,
respectively, versus the same period in 1999. The sales
growth in Mexico was driven by increases in the number
of units sold, active Representatives and customers
served. Mexico had double-digit sales growth in all prod-
uct categories, with particular strength in CFT, and
apparel categories. In Brazil, higher average orders, along
with increased prices and more Representatives were the
main drivers of sales improvements. Venezuela’s sales
improvement resulted from increases in the number of
units sold, orders, active Representatives and customers
served. Venezuela was able to post these increases despite
severe flooding in late 1999, which negatively affected
operations at the beginning of 2000, along with persist-
ent economic and political uncertainty.

Operating profit in Latin America grew 13% to
$415.5 in 2000 due to the sales increases discussed above
and operating margin improvements in Venezuela and
Brazil, partially offset by a decline in Argentina. Latin
America’s 2000 operating margin improved 0.2 points
versus 1999. Venezuela’s operating margin reflected a
highet gross margin, driven by price increases and cost
improvements, partially offset by increased marketing
spending and incentive programs. Brazil's operating mar-
gin increased primarily due to lower bad debt and recog-
nition expenses. Mexico’s operating margin remained
level with 1999 due to savings in marketing and cost
savings on purchase orders, offset by a decrease in gross
margin resulting from increased sales of lower margin
items and selective pricing cuts. In Argentina, operating
margin declined as incentives and advertising expenses
were increased to solidify our leading market position in
a weak economic environment.

In Europe, sales increased 1% to $88s.6 versus
1999 but increased 13% in local currency on 12%
growth in units and 15% higher active Representatives.
The euro, pound and zloty devalued significantly in
2000 and, as a result, negatively affected u.s. dollar
results. Sales growth in Central and Eastern Europe,
primarily Poland and Russia, was partially offset by
declines in most Western European markets, most sig-
nificantly in Germany. The sales improvement in Central
Europe resulted from double-digit increases in units,
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active Representatives and customers served. New
Representative leadership programs and a new campaign
cycle also favorably impacted sales in Poland. The sales
increase in Russia was due to double-digit increases in
units and acrive Representatives and an improved eco-
nomic environment resulting from the stability of the
Russian ruble. In Germany, the sales decline reflected a
weak economic climate. In the United Kingdom, sales
increased in local currency but u.s. dollar results were
negatively impacted by foreign currency exchange.

Operating profit in Europe grew 3% to $129.5 in
2000 due to the sales increases discussed above coupled
with operating margin improvements in Central and
Eastern Europe, particularly Poland and Russia, partially
offset by increased spending on incentives and advertising
throughout the region and the impact of weaker curren-
cies. In the Europe region, operating margin in 2000
improved 0.3 points over 1999. In Poland, gross margin
improved due to a shift in mix to higher margin items,
partially offset by the cost of shipping increased orders.
The operating margin improvement in Russia was prima-
rily due to a favorable comparison against 1999’s discount
pricing policy and product sourcing, as well as tight
expense controls on a higher sales base. A decline in the
United Kingdom’s operating margin was primarily due to
increased advertising, consumer motivation and sampling
activities to support sales growth, as well as increased
shipping, distribution and volume related costs due to
reduced capacity of shipping lines during transition to a
new shipping systern.

In the Pacific region, sales increased 11% to $799.4
in 2000 due to increases in all major markets resulting
from an 18% increase in the number of units sold and
31% increase in active Representatives. In 2000, dollar
sales for most markets were negatively impacted by for-
eign currency exchange, excluding Japan and Taiwan,
where foreign currency exchange had a positive impact
on dollar sales. In Japan, sales increased double-digits,
despite a reduction in consumer spending due to eco-
nomic pressures, due to an increase in units sold and
active Representatives as well as a favorable exchange rate
impact versus 1999. In China, sales growth of 44% was
driven by channel expansion, led by beauty boutiques.

In the Philippines, dollar sales grew in the mid-single
digits, but local currency sales increased solid double-
digits, as increased advertising and consumer promotions
resulted in strong increases in units sold, customers
served and active Representatives. Excluding che impact
of foreign exchange, sales in the Pacific region rose 13%.

Operating profit in the Pacific region increased
15% to $117.8 in 2000 due to the sales increases dis-
cussed above and operating margin improvements, pri-
marily in Japan and China, partially offset by operating
margin declines in Taiwan and the Philippines. In the
Pacific region, 2000 operating margin improved 0.6
points over 1999. In Japan, operating margin was favorably

impacted by product cost savings initiatives and a favor-
able change of product mix from non-CFT to higher mar-
gin CFT products. China’s operating margin improvement
was driven primarily by increased sales growth and new
higher margin products. Operating margin declined in
Taiwan primarily due to increased costs resulting from
moving to a new diseribution facility and increased
spending to support sales growth. Operating margin in
the Philippines was negatively impacted by higher sales
of lower margin items, and higher advertising expenses.

Global Expenses > Global expenses were $242.5 in

2001 compared with $242.3 in 2000. Global expenses
remained level in 2001, primarily due to savings in
global departmental expenses (including such areas as
marketing and information technology systems), offset
by higher benefit expenses in 2001 and insurance pro-
ceeds received in 2000 related to 1998 hurricane losses
in Central America, 1999 flood losses in Venezuela and
1999 earthquake losses in Taiwan. Global expenses were
$242.3 in 2000 compared with $255.3 in 1999. The
$13.0 decrease was primarily due to lower expenses
related to the Company’s long-term incentive plan, lower
benefit expenses, insurance proceeds received in 2000
discussed above, and savings in global marketing depart-
ments, partially offset by increased investments in infor-
mation technology and retail initiatives.

In 2001, the assets associated with the Company’s
benefic plans experienced weaker investment returns,
which was mostly due to unfavorable returns on equity
securities. These unfavorable investment rerurns are
expected to increase pension costs in the near future. In
addition, net periodic pension cost may significantly
increase in the future if settlement losses are required due
to an increase in the aggregate benefits paid to retirees as
lump sum distributions. Settlement losses may resule in
the future if the number of eligible participants deciding
to receive lump sum distributions and the amount of
their benefits increases. (See Note 10 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Accounting Changes > See Note 2 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
regarding recent accounting standards, including

FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities,” FAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” Fas No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,” Fas No. 144, “Accounting

for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
saB No. o1, “Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements,” Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 00-10,
“Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs,”
EITF 00-14, “Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,”
EITF 0c-25, “Accounting for Consideration from a
Vendor to a Retailer in Connection with the Purchase
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or Promotion of the Vendor’s Products,” and EITF
00-19, “Determination of Whether Share Settlement
Is Within the Control of the Issuer for Purposes of
Applying Issue No. 96-13, ‘Accounting for Derivative
Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially
Settled in a Company’s Own Stock.””
Contingencies > Avon is a defendant in a class action suit
commenced in 1991 on behalf of certain classes of holders
of Avon's Preferred Equity-Redemption Cumulative Stock
(“PERCS”). Plaintiffs allege various contract and securi-
ties law claims related to the PERCS (which were fully
redeemed in 1991) and seek aggregate damages of approx-
imately $145.0, plus interest. A trial of this action took
place in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York and concluded in November 2001.
At the conclusion of the trial, the judge reserved decision
in the matter. Avon believes it presented meritorious
defenses to the claims asserted. However, it is not possible
to predict the outcome of litigation and it is reasonably
possible that the trial, and any possible appeal, could be
decided unfavorably. Management is unable to make a
meaningful estimate of the amount or range of loss that
could result from an unfavorable outcome but, under some
of the damage theories presented, an adverse award could
be material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Avon is a defendant in an action commenced in
the Supreme Court of the State of New York by Sheldon
Solow d/b/a Solow Building Company, the landlotd of
the Company’s former headquarters in New York City.
Plaintiff seeks aggregate damages of approximately
$80.0, plus interest, for the Company’s alleged failure to
restore the leasehold premises at the conclusion of the
lease term in 1997. A trial of this matter had been sched-
uled for February 2002, but has been stayed pending the
determination of (i) an interlocutory appeal by plaintiff
of an order that denied the plaintiff’s motion for summary
judgment and granted partial summary judgment in
favor of the Company on one of plaintiff’s claims; and
(ii) an appeal by plaintiff of a decision in an action against
another former tenant that dismissed plaintiff’s claims
after trial. While it is not possible to predict the out-
come of litigation, management believes that there are
meritorious defenses to the claims asserted and that this
action should not have a material adverse effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. This action is being

vigorously contested.
' Various other lawsuits and claims (asserted and

unasserted), arising in the ordinary course of business or
related to businesses previously sold, are pending or
-threatened against Avon. In the opinion of Avon’s man-
agement, based on its review of the information available
at this time, the total cost of resolving such other contin-
gencies at December 31, 2001 should not have a material
adverse impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 1998, the Argentine tax authorities denied
certain past excise tax credits taken by Avon’s subsidiary
in Argentina and assessed this subsidiary for the
corresponding taxes. Avon vigorously contested this
assessment through local administrative and judicial
proceedings since 1998. In the third quarter of 2001,
the Argentine government issued a decree permitting
taxpayers to satisfy certain tax liabilities on favorable
terms using Argentine government bonds as payment.
Avon decided to settle this contested tax assessment by
applying for relief under this new government program
and purchased bonds to tender in settlement of the afore-
mentioned assessment. As a result, a pre-tax charge of
$6.4 ($3.4 after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share) was

-included in Other expense, net in the Consolidated

Statements of Income in the third quarter of 2001.

Avon has been responding to a formal investiga-
tion by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™)
which commenced in August 2000, and has furnished to
the SEC information that principally concerns a special
charge reported by Avon in the first quarter of 1999,
which included the write off of approximately $15.0 in
pre-tax costs associated with an order management soft-
ware system known as the FIRST project. The balance of
the FIRST project’s development costs had been carried as
an asset until the third quarter of 2001, when Avon
recorded a pre-tax charge of $23.9 ($14.5 after-tax, or
$.06 per diluted share) to write off the carrying value of
costs related to that project. As part of a resolution of the
investigation or at the conclusion of a contested proceed-
ing, there may be a finding that Avon knew or should
have known in the first quarcer of 1999 that it was not
probable that FIRST would be implemented and therefore,
the entire FIRST asset should have been written off as
abandoned at that time. In that connection, it may also
be necessary for Avon to restate its financial statements
to write off the entire FIRST asset in the first quarter of
1999. If Avon were to restate its financial statements to
write off the FIRST asset in the first quarter of 1999, then
the charge recorded in the third quarter of 2001 and other
FIRST-related itemns recorded in prior periods would also
be restated. (See Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows > Net cash provided by operating activities
was $754.9 in 2001 compared to $323.9 in 2000. The
2001 increase principally reflects the receipt of an income
tax refund in 2001 and higher net income (adjusted for
non-cash icems and including the cash settlement from
Sears), as well as higher working capital needs in 2000,
including the payout of a long-term incentive plan, tim-
ing of cash payments and a larger increase in inventories.
Excluding changes in debt and other financing
activities, net cash flow of $321.8 in 2001 was $§418.9
favorable compared with net cash usage of $97.1 in 2000.
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The $418.9 variance primarily resulted from higher net
cash provided by operations in 2001 and a reduction in
capital expenditures, as 2000 results included significant
spending for the u.s. Internet project. Partially offsetting
this increase were higher repurchases of Avon common
stock in 2001. During 1998 and 1997, Avon received net
proceeds under securities lending transactions that were
settled in the fourth quarter of 2000 for $101.4 and were
included in the cash flows as Ocher financing activities.
For the period 1994 through 2001, approximately
62.9 million shares of common stock were purchased
for approximately $1.6 billion under share repurchase
programs. See Note ¢ of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further details of the share
repurchase programs.

Working Capital > As of December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2000, current assets exceeded current lia-
bilities by $428.1 and $186.4, respectively. The increase
of current assets over current liabilities of $241.7 was pri-
marily due to higher cash balances and the repayment of
short-term borrowings. The increase was partially offset
by a lower receivable balance reflecting the receipt of an
income tax refund in 2001 and a higher accrued liability
balance due to the 2001 Special charge.

Primarily as a result of the Company’s share
repurchase program, at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
the Company reported a shareholders’ deficic balance of
$74.6 and $215.8, respectively.

Capital Resources > Total debt of $1,325.1 at December
31, 2001, increased $111.5 from $1,213.6 at December
31, 2000, principally due to the issuance in September
2001 of Japanese yen denominated notes payable and an
adjustment to debt to reflect the fair value of outstanding
interest rate swaps (see Note 4 of the Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements). Total debt of $1,213.6 at
December 31, 2000, increased $§206.2 from December 31,
1999, primarily due to the issuance of convertible notes in
2000. During 2001 and 2000, cash flows from operating
activities combined with cash on hand and higher debt
levels were used for repurchases of common stock, pay-
ment of dividends, and capital expenditures. Management
believes that cash from operations and available sources of
financing are adequate to meet anticipated requirements
for working capital, dividends, capital expenditures, the
stock repurchase program and other cash needs.

Debt and Contractual Financial Obligations and Commitments > At December 31, 2001, Avon'’s debt and contractual
financial obligations and commitments by due date were as follows:

2006 and

2002 2003 2004 2005 Beyond Total
Notes payable $ 87.6 $ — $ - $ — $ — % 876
Long-term debt 0.1 0.1 200.0 — 991.3'""  1,191.5
Capital lease obligations I.I 2.0 2.1 0.1 — 5.3
Operating leases 70.0 53.1 40.8 32.4 211.9 408.2
Other long-term obligations 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 c.5 8.5
Total debt and contractual financial obligations
and commitments® $160.8 $57.2 $244.9 $34.5 $1,203.7 B1,701.1

(1) $100.0 of bonds embedded with option features maturing in May 2018 can be sold back to Avon at par or can be called at par by the underwriter and

resold to investors as 15-year debt in May 2003. Convertible Notes of $422.4 maturing in 2020 may be redeemed at the option of Avon on or after July

12, 2003, In addition, at the holder's option, the Convertible Notes may be sold to Avon, for cash or shares at Avon’s discretion, at the redemption price

on July 12, 2003, July 12, 2008 and July 12, 2013.

(2) The amount of debt and contractual financial obligations and commitments excludes amounts due pursuant to derivative transactions.

See Notes 4 and 12 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information on Avon’s
debt and contractual financial obligations and commit-
ments.

Avon has a fiveryear $§600.0 revolving credit and
competitive advance facility (the “credit facility”), which
expires in 2006. The credit facility may be used for gen-
eral corporate purposes, including financing working cap-
ital and capital expenditures and supporting the stock
repurchase program. The interest rate on borrowings
under the credic facility is based on LIBOR or on the
higher of prime or /:% plus the federal funds rate. The

credit facility has an annual facility fee, payable quarterly,
of $0.5, based on Avon’s current credit ratings. The credit
facility contains customary covenants, including one
which requires Avon’s interest coverage ratio (determined
in relation to Avon's consolidated pre-tax income and
interest expense) to equal or exceed 4:1. At December 31,
2001, Avon was in compliance with all covenants in the
credit facility. At December 31, 2001 and December 31,
2000, there were no borrowings under the credit facility.
Avon maintains a $600.0 commercial paper program,
which is supported by the credit facility. Outstanding
commercial paper effectively reduces the amount available
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for borrowing under the credit facility. At December 31,
2001, Avon had no commercial paper outstanding, and
at December 31, 2000, Avon had $29.9 in commercial
paper outstanding under this program.

The cost of borrowings under the credit facility, as
well as the amount of the facility fee and utilization fee
(applicable only if more than 50% of the facility is bor-
rowed), depend on Avon’s credit ratings. A downgrade in
Avon’s credit ratings might increase the cost to Avon of
maintaining and borrowing under the credit facility, or
preclude Avon from issuing commercial paper or increase
the cost to Avon of issuing commercial paper in the
future, but the credir facility does not contain a rating
downgrade trigger that would prevent Avon from bor-
rowing under the credir facility. The credit facility would
become unavailable for borrowing only if Avon were to
fail to satisfy one of the conditions to borrowing in the
facility. These conditions to borrowing are generally
based on the accuracy of certain representations and war-
ranties, compliance by Avon with the covenants in the
credit facility (discussed above) and the absence of defaults,
including but not limited to bankruptcy and insolvency,
change of control, failure to pay other material debts, and
failure to stay or pay material judgments, as those events
are described more fully in the credit facility agreement.

At December 31, 2001, Avon was in compliance
with all covenants in its indentures (see Note 4 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements), which do
not contain any rating downgrade triggers that would
accelerate the maturity of its debt. Neither the credit
facility nor any of the indentures contains any covenant or
other requirement relating to maintenance of a positive
shareholders’ equity balance.

Avon had uncommitted domestic lines of credit
available of $49.0 in 2001 and 2000 with various banks.
As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, $11.1 of these lines
are being used for letters of credit. In addition, as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, there were international
lines of credit totaling $457.4 and $449.5, respectively,
of which $87.9 and $74.8, respectively, were outstanding
and included in Notes payable and Long-term debt. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, Aven also had letters of
credit outstanding totaling $13.9 and $9.5, respectively,
which guarantee various insurance activities. In addition,
Avon had outstanding letters of credit for various trade
activities and commercial commitments executed in the
ordinary course of business, such as purchase orders for
normal replenishment of inventory levels.

Inventories > Avon’s products are marketed during 12 to
26 individual sales campaigns each year. Each campaign
is conducted using a brochure offering a wide assortment
of products, many of which change from campaign to
campaign. It is necessary for Avon to maintain relatively
high inventory levels as a result of the nature of its busi-

ness, including the number of campaigns conducted
annually and the large number of products marketed.
Avon’s operations have a seasonal pattern characteristic of
many companies selling CFT, fashion jewelry and acces-
sories, gift and decorative items, and apparel. Holiday
sales cause a peak in the fourth quarter, which results in
the build up of inventory at the end of the third quarter.
Inventory levels are then reduced by the end of the fourth
quarter. Inventories of $612.5 at December 31, 2001,
were slightly higher than at December 31, 2000. At the
same time, inventory days outstanding declined from
prior year, reflecting Avon’s efforts to manage purchases
and inventory levels while maintaining a focus on operat-
ing the business at efficient inventory levels. It is Avon’s
objective to continue to focus on inventory management.
However, the addition or expansion of product lines,
which are subject to changing fashion trends and con-
sumer tastes, as well as planned expansion in high growth

markets, may cause inventory levels to grow periodically.

Capital Expenditures > Capital expenditures during 2001
were $155.3 compared with $193.5 in 2000. Those
expenditures were made for improvements on existing
facilities, continued investments for capacity expansion,
facility modernization, information systems, including
spending on the Internet strategy, and equipment
replacement projects. Numerous construction and infor-
mation systems projects were in progress at December 31,
2001, with an estimated cost to complete of approxi-
mately $119.2. Capital expenditures in 2002 are cur-
rently expected to be in the range of $220.0~8230.0.
These expenditures will include improvements on exist-
ing facilities, continued investments for capacity expan-
sion, facility modernization, information systems and
equipment replacement projects.

Foreign Operations > For the three years ended 2001,
2000 and 1999, the Company derived approximately
60% of its consolidated net sales and total operating
profit from operations from subsidiaries outside of the
U.S. In addition, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
these subsidiaries comprised approximately 50% of
the Company’s consolidated total assets. Avon has signif-
icant net assets in Brazil, Mexico, the United Kingdom,
Japan, Argentina, Venezuela, Canada, the Philippines
and Poland.

The functional currency for most of Avon’s foreign
operations is the local currency. The cumulative effects
of translating balance sheet accounts from the functional
currency into the U.S. dollar at current exchange rates
are included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss
in Shareholders equity. The U.s. dollar is used as the func-
tional cutrency for operations in highly inflationary for-
eign economies, including Russia and Venezuela, where
cumulative inflation rates in those countries exceeded
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100% over a three-year period. Effective January 1, 1995,
Venezuela was designated as a country with a highly infla-
tionary economy due to cumnulative inflation rates over the
three-year period 1992 —1904. Effective January 1, 1997,
Russia was designated as a country with a highly inflation-
ary economy due to cumulative inflation rates over the
three-year period 1994 —1996. Venezuela has converted

to non-hyperinflationary status effective January 1, 2002
due to reduced cumulative inflation rates.

During 2001, the Argentine economy remained in
a deep recession, making 2001 the third consecutive year
of negative growth. In addition to the economic crisis, the
Argentine peso, which had been maintained at a one-to-
one ratio for 11 years with the u.s. dollar, came under
pressure. In December 2001, foreign exchange transac-
tions were prohibited by the government. On January 6,
2002, the government announced it was devaluing the
peso by abandoning the one-to-one ratio. The foreign
exchange markets reopened on January 11, 2002.
Pursuant to FAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation,”
the exchange rate from January 11, 2002, was used as a
reference rate for the translation of Avon Argentina’s
December 31, 20071 balance sheet. Because Avon
Argentina had a u.s. dollar intercompany loan receivable
on its balance sheet, Avon Argentina recognized a net for-
eign exchange gain of approximately $8.0 pretax.

With the Argentine peso devaluation on January 6,
2002, and a forecast for continued negative economic con-
ditions, Avon anticipates the 2002 U.s. dollar results of
Avon Argentina to be negatively impacted. Net sales from
Avon Argentina represent 5% of Avon’s consolidated net
sales. The impact of any further devaluation is expected
to be partially offset by inflation, hedging strategies and
certain actions taken by management. Management
expects to leverage the direct selling channel through
Representative recruiting and price adjustments, as well
as Avon'’s local production capability, to respond to
changing market conditions, thereby achieving market
share gain.

Avon’s diversified global portfolio of businesses
has demonstrated chat the effects of weak economies and
currency fluctuations in certain countries may be offset
by strong results in others. Fluctuations in the value of
foreign currencies cause U.S. dollar-translated amounts to
change in comparison with previous periods. Accordingly,
Avon cannot project the possible effect of such fluctua-
tions upen translated amounts or future earnings. This
is due to the large number of currencies, intercompany
transactions, the hedging activity entered into in an
attempt to minimize certain effects of exchange rate
changes where economically feasible, and the fact that
all foreign currencies do not react in the same manner
against the U.S. dollar.

Certain of Avon’s financial instruments, which
are discussed below under Risk Management Strategies

and Market Rate Sensicive Instruments and in Note 7
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, are
used to hedge various amounts relating to certain inter-
national subsidiaries.

Some foreign subsidiaries rely primarily on borrow-
ings from local commercial banks to fund working capital
needs created by their highly seasonal sales pattern. From
time to time, when tax and other considerations dictate,
Avon will finance subsidiary working capital needs. At
December 31, 2001, the total indebtedness of foreign
subsidiaries to third parties was $93.1.

It is Avon’s practice to remit all the available cash
(cash in excess of working capital requirements, having
no legal restrictions and not considered permanently rein-
vested) of foreign subsidiaries as rapidly as is practical.
During 2001, Avon's foreign subsidiaries remitted, net
of taxes, $343.5 in dividends and royalties. This sum is a
substantial portion of the 2001 consclidated net earnings
of those subsidiaries.

Risk Management Strategies and Market Rate Sensitive
Instruments > As discussed above, Avon operates globally,
with manufacturing and distribution facilities in various
locations around the world. Avon may reduce its exposure
to fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates by
creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative
financial instruments. Since Avon uses foreign currency
rate-sensitive and incerest rate-sensitive instruments to
hedge a certain portion of its existing and forecasted
transactions, Avon expects that any loss in value for the
hedge instruments generally would be offset by increases
in the value of the underlying transactions.

Derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at
their fair values. The accounting for changes in fair value
(gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depends on
whether it has been designated by Avon and qualifies as
part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type of
hedging relationship. Changes in the fair value of a deriv-
ative that is designated as a fair value hedge, along with
the loss or gain on the hedged asset or liability that is
attriburable to the hedged risk, are recorded in earnings.
Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is designated
as a cash flow hedge are recorded in other comprehensive
income (“0cI”) to the extent effective and reclassified into
earnings in the same period or periods during which the
hedged transaction affects earnings. Changes in the fair
value of a derivative chat is designated as a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation are recorded in foreign
currency translation adjustments within OCI to the extent
effective as a hedge. “Effectiveness” is the extent to which
changes in fair value of a derivarive offsets changes in
fair value of the hedged item. Changes in the fair value
of a derivative not designated as a hedging instrument
are recognized in earnings in Other expense, net on the
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Consolidated Statements of Income.

Avon assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and
on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offset-
ting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
Highly effective means that cumulative changes in the
fair value of che derivative are between 80% —125% of
the cumulative changes in the fair value of the hedged
item. The ineffective porcion of the derivative's gain
or loss, if any, is recorded in earnings in Other expense,
net on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Prior
to June 1, 2001, Avon excluded the change in the time
value of option contracts from its assessment of hedge
effectiveness. Effective June 1, 2001, Avon includes the
change in the time value of options in its assessment of
hedge effectiveness. When Avon determines that a deriva-
tive is not highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting
is discontinued because it is probable that a forecasted
transaction will not occur, Avon discontinues hedge
accounting for the affected portion of the forecasted trans-
action, and reclassifies gains and losses that were accumu-
lated in OCI to earnings in Other expense, net on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Avon has not entered into derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes, nor is Avon a party to
leveraged derivatives. The master agreements governing
Avon'’s derivative contracts generally contain standard
provisions that could trigger early termination of the con-
tracts in certain circumnstances, including if Avon were to
merge with another entity and the creditworthiness of the
surviving entity were to be “materially weaker” than that
of Avon prior to the merger. In certain of these master
agreements, “materially weaker” has been defined by ref-
erence to specific credit ratings.

Interest Rate Risk > Avon uses interest rate swaps to hedge

interest rate risk on its fixed-rate debt. In addition, Avon
may periodically employ interest rate caps and forward
interest rate agreements to reduce exposure, if any, to
increases in variable interest rates.

At December 31, 2001, Avon has outstanding
interest rate swap agreements that effectively convert
fixed interest on a portion of Avon’s outstanding debt to a
variable interest rate based on LIBOR, as follows:

Related
Outstanding Debe

Notional Maturity

Amount Datce

$100.0, 6.25% Bonds, due 2018
200.0, 6.90% Notes, due 2004

$ soc.o May 2003

100.0 November 2004
100.0 200.0, 6.90% Notes, due 2004
300.0, 7.15% Notes, due 2009

300.0, 7.15% Notes, due 2009

November 2004
150.0 November 2009
150.0 November 2009*

* This interest rate swap agreement requires Avon to post collateral in
certain circumstances if Avon’s credit rating drops below BBE.

Avon has designated the interest rate swaps as
fair value hedges pursuant to Fas No. 133 (see Note 4 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Dur-
ing 2001, Long-term debt increased by $33.2 witha
corresponding increase to Other assets to reflect the fair
values of outstanding interest rate swaps. Long-term
debt also includes the remaining unamortized gain of
$7.5 resulting from a terminated swap agreement, which
is being amortized over the remaining term of the under-
lying debt. There were no amounts of hedge ineffective-
ness for the year ended December 31, 2001, related to
these interest rate swaps (see Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

At December 31, 2001, Avon has forward interest
rate agreements to protect against increases in interest
rates on a portion of Avon’s fixed to variable interest rate
swap agreements as follows:

Notional Maturity
Date
May 15, 2002

Amount
$150.0
150.0

November 15, 2002
250.0 May 15, 2002

The forward interest rate agreements have not been
designated as hedges and have been recorded at fair value
in earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Staternents for further discussion regarding the interest
rate swap and forward rate agreements.

Foreign Currency Risk > Avon uses foreign currency
forward contracts and options to hedge portions of its
forecasted foreign currency cash flows resulting from
intercompany royalties, intercompany loans, and other
third-party and intercompany foreign currency transac-
tions where there is a high probability that anticipated
exposures will marterialize. These contracts have been des-
ignated as cash flow hedges. At December 31, 2001, the
primary currencies for which Avon has net underlying
foreign currency exchange rate exposure are the U.s. dollar
versus the Argentine peso, Brazilian real, British pound,
the euro, Japanese yen, Mexican peso, Philippine peso,
Polish zloty, the Russian ruble and Venezuelan bolivar.

Avon also enters into foreign currency forward con-
tracts and options to protect against the adverse effects
that exchange rate fluctuations may have on the earnings
of its foreign subsidiaries. These derivatives do not qualify
for hedge accounting and therefore, the gains and losses
on these derivatives have been recognized in earnings each
reporting period. Avon’s hedges of its foreign currency
exposure cannot entirely eliminate the effect of changes in
foreign exchange rates on Avon's consolidated financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.
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Avon uses foreign currency forward contracts and
foreign currency denominated debt to hedge the foreign
currency exposure related to the net assets of certain of
its foreign subsidiaries. During 2001, Avon entered into
loan agreements and notes payable to borrow Japanese
yen to hedge Avon’s net investment in its Japanese sub-
sidiary (see Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). Avon also entered into foreign currency for-
ward contracts to hedge its net investment in its Mexican
subsidiary. For the year ended December 31, 2001, net
gains of 85.1 related to the effective portion of these
hedges were included in foreign currency translation
adjustments within Accumulated other comprehensive
loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

At December 31, 2001, Avon held foreign currency
forward and option contracts to buy and sell foreign cur-
rencies, including cross-currency contracts to sell one for-
eign currency for another, with notional amounts in U.s.
dollars as follows:

Buy Sell

Argentine peso 3 46 $ so
Brazilian real — 15.0
British pound 46.6 16.4
Canadian dollar —_— 17.2
Czech koruna — 11.0
Euro 83.4 45.4
Hungarian forint — 18.8
Japanese yen 12.6 23.2
Mexican peso — 88.0
Polish zloty — 6.5
Taiwanese dollar — I1.0
Other currencies — 11.3
Total $147.2 $268.8

Other Financing Activities > As of December 31, 2001,
Avon has forward contracts to purchase approximately
271,000 shares of Avon common stock at an average price
of $46.01 per share. The contracts marture in October
2002 and were recorded as equity instruments. As equity
instruments, no adjustment for subsequent changes in fair
value has been recognized. The maturities of forward con-
tracts are accelerated in the event that either Avon’s credit
rating declines to Baa2 or its stock price closes at the trig-
ger price of approximately $16.00 per share for a two-day
period. In accordance wich the provisions of EITF 0o-19,
$51.0 of contracts outstanding at December 31, 2000,
were included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets in Share repurchase commitments with a corre-
sponding decrease in Additional paid-in capital (see Note
2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Credit and Market Risk > Avon attempts to minimize its :
credit exposure to counterparties by entering into interest
rate swap, forward rate and interest rate cap contracts
only with major international financial insticutions with
“A” or higher credit ratings as issued by Standard & Poor’s
Corporation. Avon’s foreign currency and interest rate

derivatives are comprised of over-the-counter forward ,
contracts, swaps or options with major international ;
financial institutions. Although Avon’s theoretical credit
risk is the replacement cost at the then estimated fair
value of these instruments, management believes that the
risk of incurring credit risk losses is remote and that such
losses, if any, would not be material.

Non-performance of the counterparties on the bal- j
ance of all the foreign exchange and interest rate swap and \
forward rate agreements would not result in a material ‘
write off at December 31, 2001. In addition, Avon may
be exposed to market risk on its foreign exchange and
interest rate swap and forward rate agreements as a result
of changes in foreign exchange and interest rates. The

market risk related to the foreign exchange agreements’
should be substantially offset by changes in the valuation
of the underlying items being hedged.

Avon is exposed to changes in financial market con-
ditions in the normal course of its operations, primarily
due to international businesses and transactions denomi-
nated in foreign currencies and the use of various financial
instruments to fund ongoing activities.

Various derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments held by Avon are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. These financial instruments are either
discussed above or in Notes 4 and 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Interest rate changes
would result in gains or losses in the fair value of debt
and other financing instruments held by Avon. Based on
the outstanding balance of all these financial instruments
at December 31, 2001, a hypothetical 50 basis point
change (either an increase or a decrease) in interest rates
prevailing at that date, sustained for one year, would not
represent a material potential loss in fair value, earnings
or cash flows. This potential loss was calculated based on
discounted cash flow analyses using interest rates compa-
rable to Avon’s current cost of debt. In 2001, Avon did
not experience a material loss in fair value, earnings ot
cash flows associated with changes in interest rates.

Avon is exposed to equity price fluctuations for
investments included in the grantors trust (see Note
10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
A 10% change (either an increase or decrease) in equity
prices would not be material based on the fair value of
equity investments as of December 31, 2001.

As previously discussed, Avon also engages in vari-
ous hedging activities in order to reduce potential losses
due to foreign currency risks. Consistent wich the nature
of the economic hedge of such foreign exchange contracts,
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any gain or loss would be offset by corresponding decreases
or increases, respectively, of the underlying instrument or
transaction being hedged. These financial instruments are
discussed above and in Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Avon uses a Value at Risk (var) model to evaluate
the potential loss due to adverse changes in marker risk
factors relating to its outstanding foreign currency deriva-
tive instruments, The vaR computation includes Avon’s
outstanding foreign currency forwards and options. The
computation excludes anticipated transactions, foreign
currency payables and receivables and net investments in
foreign subsidiaries, which the foregoing instruments are
intended to hedge. The var model uses a Monte Carlo
methodology that values foreign currency derivative
instruments against one thousand randomly generated
sets of price outcomes. The model generates its prices
based on historical volatilities and correlations observed
over the last year (approximately 250 business days).
Based on a 95% confidence level, a one-month holding
period at December 31, 2001, and normal market condi-
tions, the potential loss in fair value from these foreign
currency derivative instruments would not materially
affect Avon’s earnings or cashflows. The var model is a
risk estimation tool and is not intended to project actual
losses in fair value that will be incurred by Avon nor is it
intended to estimate the risk that non-normal market
conditions or other unusual events will occur that might
affect the fair value of Avon’s foreign currency derivative
instruments. Prior to 2001, Avon used a sensitivity analy-
sis to evaluate the risk of adverse changes in market risk
factors. The risk of loss at December 31, 2001, using a

sensitivity analysis was not material.

Euro

A single currency called the euro was introduced in
Europe on January 1, 1999. On that date, 12 of the 15
member countries of the European Union adopted the
euro as their common legal currency. Fixed conversion
rates between these participating countries’ existing cur-
rencies (the “legacy currencies”) and the euro were estab-
lished as of that date. The legacy currencies are scheduled
to remain legal tender as denominations of the euro until
June 30, 2002. During this transition period, parties may
settle transactions using either the euro or a participating
country’s legal currency. Beginning in January 2002, new
euro-denominated bills and coins were issued. Generally
legacy currencies were withdrawn from circulation on
February 28, 2002.

Avon operating subsidiaries affected by the euro
conversion have addressed issues raised by the euro cur-
rency conversion. These issues include, among others,
the need to adapt information technology systems,
business processes and equipment to accommodate
euro-denominated transactions, the impact of one com-

mon currency on pricing and recalculating currency risk.
The system and equipment conversion costs were not
material. Due to the numerous uncertainties associated
with the market impact of the euro conversion, Avon can-
not reasonably estimate the effects one common currency
will have on pricing and the resulting impact, if any, on
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Other Information

In 1997, the Company announced its BPR program to
streamline operations and improve profitability through
margin improvement and expense reductions. In connec-
tion with this program, BPR initiatives reduced costs by
approximately $400.0 in 2000 versus 1997 levels, with a
portion of the savings being reinvested primarily in con-
sumer-focused initiatives.

In May 2001, Avon announced its new Business
Transformation plans, which are designed to significantly
reduce costs and expand profit margins, while continu-
ing to focus on consumer growth strategies. Business
Transformation initiatives include an end-to-end evalua-
tion of business processes in key operating areas, with
tatget completion dates through 2004. Specifically,
the initiatives focus on simplifying Avon’s marketing
processes, driving supply chain opportunities, strengthen-
ing Avon's sales model through the Sales Leadership pro-
gram and the Internet, and streamlining the Company’s
organizational structure.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, Avon recorded spe-
cial and non-recurring charges of $97.4 pretax ($68.3
after-tax, or $.28 per diluted share), primarily associated
with facility rationalizations and workforce reduction
programs related to implementation of certain Business
Transformation initiatives. Approximately 80% of the
charge was cash related. See Note 13 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further details
of the special and non-recurring charges.

Beginning in 2002, Avon expects to see savings, net
of transitional costs, of approximately $30.0, from actions
associated with the special charge. It is expected that the
savings will provide added financial flexibility to achieve
profit targets, while enabling further investment in con-
sumer growth strategies and driving operating margin
expansion. Cost savings from current initiatives should
accelerate thereafter, with savings in 2004 expected to be
approximately $80.0—$90.0. Additional special charges
are under consideration for 2002, primarily related to
additional Business Transformation initiatives. Although
the nature and extent of any further charges remain under
consideration, such charges might be in the range of
$100.0-§150.0, pretax. Based on the estimated benefits it
expects to realize from its overall Business Transformation
initiatives, Avon has set as a goal improvements in operat-
ing margin of 50 basis points in 2002 and 100 basis points
in each of 2003 and 2004.
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Results of Operations by Quarter (Unaudited)

Avon Products, Inc. |
In millions, except per share dato

2001 First Second Third Fourth Year |
Net sales $1,347.2 $1,452.5 $1,412.8 $1,739.5 $5,952.0 l
Other revenue 10.6 10.2 9.7 12.0 42.5 i
Gross profic* 856.7 940.2 897.5 1,080.0 3,774:4 i
Contract settlement gain, net of related expenses _ _ (25.9) _ (25.9) ‘
i Asset impairment charge _ _ 23.9 . 23.9
— Special charges _ - _ 94.9 94.9 :
;‘ Operating profit 145.8 235.8 177.2 190.6 749-4 ‘
] Income before taxes, minority interest and \
N cumulative effect of accounting change 126.5 213.8 152.2 173.2 665.7
Income before minority interest and \
cumulative effect of accounting change 82.0 139.2 100.9 112.7 434.8 5
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 82.0 137.7 100.3 110.3 430.3 ;
Net income 8§ 817 $ 137.7 8 100.3 $ 1103 $ 430.0 'l
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 34 $ 58 $ 42 $ 47 $ 1.827
Diluted $ 34 $ .57 $ .42 $ .46 $ 179"
* Fourth quarter and full year 2001 includes a non-recurring charge of $2.5 for inventory write downs.
2000 First Second Third Fourth Year
Net sales $1,306.7 $1,382.6 $1,336.0 $1,648.4 $5,673.7
Other revenue 10.4 10.0 9.7 10.8 40.9
Gross profit 826.3 894.0 855.5 1,016.1 3,591.9
Operating profit 137.8 220.4 168.6 261.9 788.7
Income before taxes, minority interest and
cumulative effect of accounting change 109.5 195.1 144.3 242.1 691.0
Income before minority interest and
cumulative effect of accounting change 70.4 125.9 93.2 199.8 489.3
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 70.4 124.9 92.3 197.5 48s.1
Net income $ 637 $ 1249 $ o923 $ 1975 $ 4784
Basic earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ .30 $ 53 $ .39 $ .83 $  2.04"
Cumulative effect of accounting change (.03) — — — (.03)
$ 27 $ 53 $ 39 $ 8 § 201v
Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ .30 $ 52 $ .38 $ 81 $  2.02
Cumulative effect of accounting change (.03) — — — (.03)
$ 27 $ 52 $ .38 $ 81 $  1.99"

(1) The sum of per share amounts for the quarters does not necessarily equal that for the year because the computations were made independently.
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Market Prices Per Share of Common Stock by Quarter

Quarter High Low High Low
First $ 48.25 $ 38.00 $ 34.50 $ 25.25
Second 48.26 35.55 44.50 28.38
Third 50.12 42.00 44.00 35.00
Fourth 49.88 43.07 49.75 38.19

Avon common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. At December 31, 2001, there were 21,393 sharehold-
ers of record. The Company believes that there are over 70,000 additional shareholders who are not “shareholders of
record” but who beneficially own and vote shares through nominee holders such as brokers and benefit plan trustees.
Dividends of $.76 per share, or $.19 per share each quarter, were declared and paid in 2001. Dividends of $.74 per
share, or $.185 per share each quarter, were declared and paid in 2000.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Avon Products, Inc.
In millions, except per share data

Years ended December 31

2000

Net sales

Other revenue

$5,673.7
40.9

Total revenue

Costs, expenses and other:
Cost of sales*
Marketing, distribution and administrative expenses
Contract settlement gain, net of related expenses (Note 15)
Asset impairment charge (Note 16)
Special charge (Note 13)

5,714.6

2,122.7
2,803.2

Operating profit

Interest expense
Interest income
Other expense, net

Total other expenses

83.7

Income from continuing operations before taxes, minority interest
and cumulative effect of accounting changes
Income taxes

665.7
230.9

Income before minority interest and cumulative effect
of accounting changes
Minority interest

434.8
(4-5)

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect
of accounting changes
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax

430.3
(0.3)

Net income

430.0

Basic earnings per share:
Continuing operations
Cumulative effect of accounting changes

3 1.82

$ 1.82

Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations

Cumulative effect of accounting changes

$ 179

$§ 179

* 2001 and 1999 include non-recurring charges of $2.5 and $46.0, respectively, for inventory write downs.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Avon Products, inc.

In millions, except share data

December 31

Assets

Current assets

Cash, including cash equivalents of $381.8 and $23.9

Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $45.1 and $39.2)
Income tax receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other

$ 1229
499.0

95.2
610.6

218.2

Total current assets

1,545-7

Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Land

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

53.0
659.5
810.6

Less accumulated depreciation

1,523.1
754-7

768.4

Other assets

512.3

Total assets

$2,826.4

Liabilities and Shareholders’ (Deficit) Equity
Current liabilities '

Debt maturing within one year

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Other accrued liabilities

Sales and taxes other than income

Income taxes

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Employee benefit plans

Deferred income taxes

Other liabilities (including minority interest of $29.0 and $30.7)

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 12 and 14)

Share repurchase commitments (Note 2)

Shareholders’ (deficit) equity
Common stock, par value $.25—authorized:
800,000,000 shares; issued 356,312,680 and 354,535,840 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, at cost—119,631,574 and 116,373,304 shares

I

89.1 88.6
938.0 824.1
»389.9 1,139.8
(489.5) (399.1)

(2,002.1) (1,869.2)

Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity

(74.6) (215.8)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ (deficit) equity

$3,193.1 $2,826.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Avon Products, Inc.
In millions

Years ended December 31

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 430.0

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change 0.3 6.7
Depreciation and amortization 109.1
Provision for doubtful accounts 105.6
Amortization of debt discounts (premiums) 14.9 1.4
Translation losses (gains) 6.8 2.7
Deferred income taxes (31.1) 13.5
Special charges, net of payments 89.1 (18.3)
Asset impairment charge 23.9 —
Other 15.9 13.8

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (155.5) (145.6)
Income tax receivable 95.2 (95.2)
Inventories (33.2) (103.3)
Prepaid expenses and other (17.7) (30.7)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 71.7 (57.3)
Income and other taxes 38.4 81.5
Noncurrent assets and liabilities (8.5) (15.1)

Net cash provided by operating activities 754.9 323.9

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures (r55.3) (193.5)
Disposal of assets 8.2 7.2

Acquisitions of subsidiary stock and other investing activities (5.0) (1.4)

Net cash used by investing activities (152.1) (187.7)

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash dividends (181.9) (178.2)
Book overdrafts (0.2) (13.5)
Debrt, net (maturities of three months or less) (23.0) (194.3)
Proceeds from short-term debt 99.7 90.5

Retirement of short-term debt : (89.1) (92.2)
Proceeds from long-term debt 76.5 400.1

Retirement of long-term debt (.2) (.3)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 49.1 38.4

Repurchase of common stock (132.9) (68.1)
Other financing activities —_ (101.4)

Net cash used by financing activities (202.0) (119.0)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents (15.0) (11.9)

Net increase in cash and equivalents 385.8 5.3

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 122.7 117.4

Cash and equivalents at end of year 508.5 $ 1227
Cash paid for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized 55.3 $ o986

Income taxes, net of refunds received 123.7 207.6

The accompanying notes are an incegral part of these statements.

AVON 2001 FEEL THE POWER




Consolidated Statements o